








October 20, 2021 

Peter A Bellas 

5 Norblad Ln. 

Stayton OR, 97383 

Honorable Mayor and the Stayton City Council, 

I would like to express my interest in being considered to fill the remainder of the term on the 

vacant city council seat. 

My name is Peter Bellas and my wife and I purchased a house and moved to Stayton August  of 

2020. We had been looking to relocate to a “ruralish” area in Oregon for several years and 

stumbled upon Stayton quite by accident. We saw a house on a real estate site that we 

instantly fell in love with and were here the next day to look at it. After getting a chance to walk 

around Stayton for a few days we fell in love with the town as well and put an offer on the 

house. 

In respect to serving on the City Council I have no agenda or desire to make specific changes, I 

believe I would be an asset as the city navigates land use, city services and budget issues. I am 

retired, have time available and in short would like to offer the benefit of my experience if you 

feel it would be helpful. 

I spent 40+ years of my life on a small ranch in Santa Clarita California as it went through a 

dramatic growth cycle. The last 20 years of my career I worked at our local community college 

serving as the Dean of the Economic Development Division assisting schools, businesses and 

government agencies. During my tenure I served on a number of boards and councils: 

• Board of Directors – Santa Clarita Valley Economic Development Corporation 

• Board of Directors – Santa Clarita Valley Chamber of Commerce 

• Board of Directors – Santa Clarita Valley Industry Association 

• Advisor – City of Santa Clarita Economic Development Department 

• Board of Governors – Los Angeles County Economic Development Corporation 

• Executive Cabinet - College of the Canyons 

In addition, I have experience identifying and developing job training programs, writing and 

administering grants and working with schools from K12 to Universities. 

Personally, we love the small-town atmosphere here, the abundant parks and trails and the 

friendly conversations we have with quite literally everyone we meet. We are here to stay and 

want very much to be part of this community and to give wherever we can to help it thrive. 

If you would like to pursue this further, I can provide a full resume or meet in person. 

Sincerely, 

  P A Bellas__       

Peter Bellas 



1

Alissa Angelo

From: casey falconer <yoink93@icloud.com>
Sent: Sunday, November 7, 2021 9:01 AM
To: City Government
Subject: City councilor position 

To Mayor Hank Porter 

 
Greetings, I would like to formally submit to you my interest in joining the Stayton city council. I have attended many 
meetings over the last few years and I feel that my insight would help the council make a better informed decision. I 
come from a military family and have spent most of my life involved in military, sports and construction. I am a lead 
electrical foreman for a Portland based company and am currently running several large scale projects. Leadership roles 
and responsibilities come very easy for me. I don’t shy away from the tough decisions. I am also the President of The 
Village at Sylvan Springs HOA. Between running many employees and handling HOA business, I have found that I not 
only enjoy it, but am very good at it. I feel it takes a certain type of mentality to be able to be in this position. We all 
have our own opinions and political views. But that needs to be put aside to do the right thing. A person needs to be 
humble and accept that not everyone agrees and sometimes you get outvoted. To understand that and not take it 
personally is very important. I have witnessed that on more than one occasion. If chosen for this position I would make a 
point to be very vocal with the public and listen to their opinions and base my decisions in part on those talks. Some 
councilors do that already, and I feel it is very important to not only continue that dialogue, but to expand it. A very large 
reason citizens don’t come to meetings or even weigh in is because they feel it is pointless because they are not heard. I 
want to change that. Hopefully I am not to late on this submission. Feel free to contact me anytime. Thank you. 
Casey Falconer 
503‐508‐8879 
 

Sent from my iPhone 















Jordan W Lambert VI
1155 Highland Drive
Stayton, OR 97383
(503) 576-9344
jordan.lambert@gmail.com

28th October 2021

Mayor Henry Porter
362 N. Third Avenue
Stayton, OR 97383
(503) 769-3425

Dear Mayor Porter

I would like to express my interest in the vacant city council position due to the
resignation of Councilor Christopher Molin.

I have lived in the City of Stayton since I left the military in 2007 with my wife
Haley Lambert and now four sons. We have lived in a few different
neighborhoods within Stayton, and both grew up in the Stayton area. I have
grown to love Stayton more and more, and I hope that it remains home to our
family for many years to come.

I recently was made aware of the vacancy on the Stayton City Council and
have a further interest in helping to represent the many voices and opinions of
our great City. I believe that I have the experience and skills to do that well. My
desire is not to just represent my opinions, but to be open to other
perspectives and represent the citizens of Stayton well, even if their opinions
do not align with my own. I have a desire to listen with an open mind and work
with a team to further set Stayton and our many residents up for success in the
future.

My career has been mostly in the IT/Computer field, and I have volunteered at
many different organizations. Throughout my career and volunteering I have
been responsible for organizing projects, budgeting, building teams, training
development, documentation creation, and many other tasks that I believe
uniquely qualify me to be successful in this position.

I would love the opportunity to speak with you more about my experience and
see if I would be a desirable addition to the Stayton City Council at this time.
Thank you for your time and consideration.

Sincerely,

Jordan W Lambert VI



1

Alissa Angelo

From: Sharrice Pendergraft <sharricep@aol.com>
Sent: Friday, November 5, 2021 2:34 PM
To: City Government
Cc: Sharrice Pendergraft
Subject: Interest in City Council Position

Sharrice Pendergraft 
1291 Westwood Dr. 
Stayton, OR  97383 
  
  
November 5, 2021 
  
  
Mayor Hank Porter 
Stayton City Hall 
362 N. 3rd Street 
Stayton, OR  97383 
  
  
Dear Mayor Porter, 
  
My name is Sharrice Pendergraft and I am submitting this letter showing my interest in the vacant city council position. 
  
First, I would like to share with you what Stayton means to me.  Stayton is home.  It’s where my friends and family 
are.  It’s my community and I love it! 
  
My family moved to Stayton when I was in 7th grade.  I attended school here until I graduated.  During this time, I 
volunteered at the Christmas bazars, the library, the City of Stayton, building the cafeteria at the high school and 
volunteered many years at Summer Fest.   
  
I moved away from Stayton for a short time after graduation but once my children were old enough to attend school, I 
knew this is where I wanted to raise them.  I rented at first and then purchased my home in Stayton about 10 years ago.   
  
I have worked for the State of Oregon for 22 years and I’m currently a direct manager of 26 staff and indirectly manage 
another 16.  I have a variety of things I’m responsible for.  Some that I believe have a nexus to the council position are, 
reviewing documents and providing timely feedback, reviewing budgets and helping plan them, reviewing contracts and 
legal documents, making the best decision for our branch even though it may not be the popular one, meeting facilitation 
and participation, listening to comments and feedback on ideas so that I can make an educated decision and advocating 
for my staff’s needs. 
  
I was raised to get involved with my community and to make a difference.  I believe that this is a way for me to do this. 
  
In closing, I would like to say that Stayton will forever be my home and if selected to this council I will do my best to honor 
our committee and make Stayton a place that my family will always want to be. 
  
Sincerely, 
  
  
Sharrice Pendergraft 



October 20, 2021,  
 
City of Stayton 
362 N. Third Ave. 
Stayton, OR  97383 
 
Dear Mayor Porter, 
 
I heard a rumor that my former in-box at City Hall still has my name on it. If that is the case, you might 
ask staff not to remove it just yet. I have unfinished business to address on behalf of the community.  
 
In the summer of 2019 after 9 years on the Stayton City Council, I resigned my council position to focus 
on my personal health. It was a difficult decision for me at the time but one I do not regret in the least. 
Thanks to advances in modern medicine and extremely gifted cardiologists, I have once again resumed 
my active lifestyle without limitations or restrictions.  
 
Over the last 2 years, I have attempted to stay away from city business of any sort. When community 
members would contact me with concerns, I would graciously remind them I was no longer on the 
council. I tried to disengage from council agendas and focus on my health. I kept telling myself there 
would be another chance to contribute down the road. That proved to be exceedingly difficult for me 
but physically necessary.  
 
The current needs of the city are plentiful, but the biggest challenge is hiring a new city manager. The 
current employment environment, coupled with a reduction in career city managers and Stayton’s past 
reputation is going to be problematic in finding the right candidate to replace Mr. Campbell. The 
recruitment process will be arduous and time consuming. It will take leadership from the governing 
body to make sure the final selection fits the community make up and is qualified to lead us into the 
future. 
 
Mr. Mayor, I have never lost sight of Stayton’s progress towards becoming a cherished community for 
everyone. During my tenure on council, I tried hard to honestly be the people’s representative. It was 
not always fun or easy, but I knew what I was getting into when I volunteered to serve.  
Today, I respectfully ask for your consideration to appointment to fill the vacant council position. I 
strongly believe the city would benefit from my years of experience, council knowledge and leadership. 
Upon appointment, I can immediately assume the role and contribute to not only routine council 
business but the pivotal recruitment process for a new city manager.  
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
Brian Quigley  
1013 E. Virginia Street 
Stayton, OR  97383 



From: SSIMS33@sc.rr.com
To: City Government
Subject: Letter of Interest for Stayton City Council position
Date: Monday, October 25, 2021 4:46:52 PM

Dear Mayor Porter,

My name is Stephen Sims.  I would like to express my interest in serving on the Stayton City
Council.  My background and goals would provide a positive impact to the Council and the
City of Stayton. 

I am currently a resident of Stayton and moved here in early 2017 from Italy after retiring
from the US Navy.  I grew up between Stayton and Salem before entering the military. My
family is the original Stayton family so my roots in this area run deep.

I am a retired Naval Officer with 30 years of leadership and mentoring experience.  I was a
Surface Warfare Officer leading to a significant amount of shipboard experience.  My tours
ranged from Combat Systems, Operations, Engineering, and Staff duty.  My education
includes a B.S. in Chemical Engineering from Oregon State University and a M.A. in Public
Administration from Georgia College and State University.

I also currently volunteer at the Santiam Teen Center on a weekly basis.

My goals as a volunteer in the City Council are straight forward; I want our community to be
one of the most livable cities in the state of Oregon. I intend to base any recommendations that
I make on providing for the greater good of Stayton and the residents that reside in the City.

I believe my background, education, and training would be an excellent fit for the vacant City
Council member position.

Thank you for your consideration.

Very Respectfully,

Stephen Sims

2110 E Santiam St
Stayton, OR 97383
Cell phone:  503-779-9267

mailto:SSIMS33@sc.rr.com
mailto:CityGovernment@staytonoregon.gov


From: Michelle
To: City Government
Subject: Letter of Interest, vacant Council position
Date: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:18:04 AM

Dear Mayor Porter,

    I’m writing this letter to express interest in filling the vacant City Council position.
   I currently serve on the Library Board and I have served on the Planning Commission in the past.
   Stayton has been home for most of my life and I’ve always been interested in serving the community. I would
have liked to run for the Council in the past but work and homeschooling my daughter took most of my time. Now
my daughter is grown and I find that I have much more time to devote to community service. Please consider me for
the appointment.
   Thank you for your time and I’ll be happy to answer any questions you have.

~~Michelle Wonderling
503-580-0902
1323 E Jefferson St
Stayton, OR

mailto:mmwonder@wvi.com
mailto:CityGovernment@staytonoregon.gov


 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes                        Page 1 of 2 
November 1, 2021 

City of Stayton 
City Council Minutes 

November 1, 2021 
LOCATION:  STAYTON COMMUNITY CENTER, 400 W. VIRGINIA, STAYTON 

Time Start: 7:02 P.M.     Time End: 8:27 P.M. 

COUNCIL MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG 
COUNCIL STAYTON STAFF  

Mayor Henry Porter Alissa Angelo, City Manager Pro Tem 
Councilor Paige Hook Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning & Development (via Zoom) 
Councilor Ben McDonald David Frisendahl, Police Chief (excused) 
Councilor Jordan Ohrt Lance Ludwick, Public Works Director 
Councilor David Patty (excused) Janna Moser, Library Director (via Zoom) 
 Susannah Sbragia, Finance Director 
 Ross Williamson, City Attorney (via Zoom) 
  

 
AGENDA ACTIONS 

Announcements 
a. Additions to the agenda 

 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, 

Bias, etc. 

 
None. 
 
None. 
 

Appointments 
 

None. 
 

Public Comment 
a. Beth Jones 

 

 
Ms. Jones is a candidate for House District 17. 

Consent Agenda 
a. October 18, 2021 City Council Minutes 
 

 
Motion from Councilor Ohrt, seconded by Councilor 
McDonald to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 
Motion passed 3:0.  
 

Public Hearing None. 
 

General Business 
Executive Session News Media Attendance Policy 
a. Staff Report – Alissa Angelo and Ross Williamson 
 
 
 
b. Public Comment  
 
c. Council Discussion 
 
 
 
 
d. Council Decision 
 
 

 
 
Ms. Angelo and Mr. Williamson reviewed the staff report 
and changes made to the proposed Executive Session News 
Media Attendance Policy. 
 
None. 
 
Council questions and discussion on including the list of 
specific media agencies in the policy, institutional news 
media entities, and other types of entities that may be 
allowed to attend an executive session.  
 
Motion from Councilor Hook, seconded by Councilor 
McDonald, to approve Resolution No. 1031, with 
amendments to #2 of the policy removing the list of 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes                        Page 2 of 2 
November 1, 2021 

 
 
 
 
Executive Recruitment Agencies – Request for 
Proposals 
a. Staff Report – Alissa Angelo 
 
b. Public Comment  
 
c. Council Discussion 
 
 
d. Council Decision 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive Recruitment Agencies – Request for 
Proposals 
a. Staff Report – Susannah Sbragia 
 
b. Public Comment  
 
c. Council Discussion 
 

institutional news media entities and including language 
stating a list is maintained by staff at City Hall. Motion 
passed 3:0.  
 
 
 
Ms. Angelo reviewed the staff report. 
 
None. 
 
Council discussion of proposals and importance of the 
management team’s input. 
 
Motion from Councilor Hook, seconded by Councilor Ohrt, to 
direct staff to enter into an agreement with Jensen 
Strategies with an amendment to the scope of work to 
include the management team in the interview process. 
Motion passed 3:0. 
 
 
 
Ms. Sbragia reviewed the staff report and her presentation. 
 
None. 
 
Council discussion of sustainability of operating on lower 
spending and its impacts on the City and staff, tax revenues, 
and an update on the swimming pool. 
 

Communications from City Staff 
 

Ms. Angelo shared the Police Department’s fundraiser for No 
Shave November and a reminder of the upcoming Council 
work session on November 8th.  
 

Communications from Mayor and City Council Reminder to vote in the upcoming election. 
 
Council discussion on the Council vacancy letters of interest.  
 

 
APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 15TH DAY OF NOVEMBER 2021, BY A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY 
COUNCIL. 
 

Date:    By:   
  Henry A. Porter, Mayor 
 
Date:   Attest:   
   Alissa Angelo, Pro-Tem City Manager 

       
Date:  Transcribed by:        
   Alissa Angelo, Pro-Tem City Manager 



 
Stayton City Council Work Session Minutes                       Page 1 of 1 
November 8, 2021 

City of Stayton 
City Council Work Session Minutes 

November 8, 2021 
LOCATION:  STAYTON COMMUNITY CENTER, 400 W. VIRGINIA, STAYTON 

Time Start: 6:00 P.M.     Time End: 6:38 P.M. 

COUNCIL MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG 
COUNCIL STAYTON STAFF  

Mayor Henry Porter Alissa Angelo, City Manager Pro Tem 
Councilor Paige Hook (via Zoom) Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning & Development (via Zoom) 
Councilor Ben McDonald (joined at 6:15 p.m.) David Frisendahl, Police Chief (excused) 
Councilor Jordan Ohrt Lance Ludwick, Public Works Director 
Councilor David Patty (via Zoom) Janna Moser, Library Director 
 Susannah Sbragia, Finance Director 
  

 
AGENDA ACTIONS 

American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funding & Priority 
Projects 
 

Ms. Sbragia reviewed the presentation regarding use of the 
ARPA funding and a list of potential priority projects put 
together by City staff.  
 
The immediate need and request by staff is to move forward 
with the Sand Filter Bed #2 project which is estimated at 
$742,500.  
 
Council members offered other possible funding ideas 
including community business grants, homelessness 
assistance, utility bill assistance, childcare facility assistance, 
landlord assistance, and senior assistance.  
 
The priority list provided by staff is not all inclusive and 
further in-depth discussions on the remaining ARPA funding 
priority projects will be brought forward at a future date to a 
Council work session.  
 
A request to move forward with the Sand Filter Bed #2 
project will be brought to Council at their November 15, 
2021 meeting.  

 
APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 15TH DAY OF NOVEMBER 2021, BY A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY 
COUNCIL. 
 

Date:    By:   
  Henry A. Porter, Mayor 
 
Date:   Attest:   
   Alissa Angelo, Pro-Tem City Manager 

       
Date:  Transcribed by:        
   Alissa Angelo, Pro-Tem City Manager 





 
 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
 TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 

 DATE: November 15, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Participation Agreement for Housing Rehabilitation 
Program  

  
 
ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is authorization for the City Manager Pro Tem to execute a 
participation agreement with the cities of Hubbard and Silverton for a Community 
Development Block Grant Housing Rehabilitation grant application and program. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The City recently closed out our 2018 Housing Rehabilitation Grant, in which funding was 
provided the owners of manufactured housing units in parks to improve their dwellings.  The 
program was available to manufactured homeowners throughout most of Marion County.  As 
the program ended, expending all of the available funds, we were left with a waiting list of 
individuals who were not able to receive funding, including three in Stayton. 

As a new round of funding is available, the City of Silverton has agreed to be the lead applicant 
and has offered to partner with Stayton and Hubbard to continue the opportunity to provide 
assistance to qualified homeowners. 

The City Council’s agreement to participate in the program is required.  Attached is the 
Participation Agreement prepared by the Mid-Willamette Valley Council of Governments. 

OPTIONS AND MOTIONS 

The City Council is presented with the following options. 

1. Approve Stayton’s participation in the CDBG CV-2 Manufactured Home Rehabilitation 
Program  

Move to approve the City’s participation in the CDBG CV-2 Manufactured Home 
Rehabilitation Program with the cities of Silverton and Hubbard and authorize the City 
Manager Pro Tem to execute the Participation Agreement as presented. 

2. Decline to participate in the CDBG CV-2 Manufactured Home Rehabilitation Program  

No motion necessary  



 
Page 1 of 2 

Participation Agreement in the City of Silverton Manufactured Home Rehabilitation  
CDBG CV-2 Grant Program 

 

Agreement Title:  Participation in the City of Silverton Manufactured Home Rehabilitation Grant 
Program (CDBG Award #________) 

 
Agreement Date:  _____________, 2021 
 
Signatory parties:  City of Silverton (lead applicant) and the cities of: Hubbard and Stayton. 
 
Agreement: The above signatory parties agree to participate in the City of Silverton 

Manufactured Home Rehabilitation Grant Program provided through a Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) COVID-19 (CV-2) fund, administered by the 
Oregon Business Development Department, Infrastructure Finance Authority. 

 
Grant Activity: The purpose of the CDBG CV-2 Housing Rehabilitation Grant Fund is to provide 

assistance to income qualifying homeowners to repair their homes – specifically 
low to moderate income homeowners who own their own dwelling but do not own 
their own land and/or low to moderate income applicants with no equity in their 
land to qualify for the existing VDI Loan Program. Additionally, the CDBG COVID-
19 (CV-2) funding may only be used for households with documented financial 
need due to the impact of COVID-19 and households unable to access any other 
payment assistance covering the same time period costs (no duplication of 
benefit).   

 
Constraints: One-hundred percent (100%) of the benefitted owner-occupied household 

occupants must have incomes below the federal low- and moderate-income limit 
(80% of the median family income as adjusted by family size). 

 Only persons who reside within the boundaries of the cities of the signatory parties 
are eligible to receive the housing rehabilitation funding, unless funding remains to 
serve existing waitlist homeowners and the participation agreement is further 
amended. 

 Only persons who can attest to documented financial need due to the impact of 
COVID-19 and households unable to access any other payment assistance 
covering the same time period costs (no duplication of benefit).   

 Valley Development Initiatives (VDI) has entered into a sub-grant agreement with 
the City of Silverton to manage the Manufactured Home Rehabilitation Grant 
Program. 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 

 
Counterparts: This agreement may be signed in counterparts and each counterpart will be 

deemed an original. 
 
Multiple Parties: In the event that one or more of the signatories identified above decline to sign this 

agreement, it remains sufficient for all other signatories to receive the benefits of 
the agreement.  

  
So Agreed:  
  
____________________________________        _____________________________ 
Signed      Date 
 
____________________________________ 
Title (Include Jurisdiction) 



 
Public Works Design Standards; SMC 12.08.310.3.e 
Ordinance 1051  Page 1 of 2  
November 15, 2021 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Lance S. Ludwick P.E., Director of Public Works 
 
DATE:   November 15, 2021 
 
SUBJECT:  Ordinance 1051; Stayton Municipal Code Title 12, Chapter 

12.08 Revisions  
  
     
ISSUE: Should the City Council approve Ordinance 1051 which revises Title 12 of the Stayton 
Municipal Code (SMC), more particularly Chapter 12.08.310. 3.e which states that “the Public 
Works Director will provide the City Council with a semi-annual report which lists the updates 
and modifications to the City of Stayton Public Works Design Standards and Construction 
Specifications during the preceding six months”? 
 
ENCLOSURE: Attached to this memorandum is a draft of SMC Chapter 12.08.310.3.e. showing 
the changes made.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommendation is to approve Ordinance 1035 as presented.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: In 2010 the city adapted a set of documents entitled “Stayton 
Public Works Design Standards and Construction Specifications – 2010 Edition” as the public 
works design standards and construction specifications for public works improvements in the 
City.  
 
In 2015 the Public Works Director and the City Engineer updated the PWDS and the PWCS and 
those changes were brought forward to the City Council.  In October 2020 the public works 
department staff and the City Engineer started reviewing and making revisions to the 2015 
Design Standards (PWDS) and Construction Specifications (PWCS) to make them more user 
friendly and to reduce areas of conflict.  The update was completed in September 2021.  
 
As stated above Chapter 12.08 of the SMC requires that the Public Works Director bring 
forward to the City Council a semi-annual report discussing revisions that have taken place to 
the PWDS and PWCS in the preceding 6 months.  
 
Revisions to the PWDS and PWCS do not take place that frequently, as illustrated by the six (6) 
years between of the last updates (2015 & 2021) 



 
Public Works Design Standards; SMC 12.08.310.3.e 
Ordinance 1051  Page 2 of 2  
November 15, 2021 

If Ordinance 1051 is adapted by the City Council, the Public Works Director will bring forward a 
report which lists the Public Works Design Standards and Construction Specification revisions 
when changes occur.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: There are no fiscal Impacts resulting from Ordinance 1051. 
 
OPTIONS:  
 
Option 1: Approve Ordinance 1051 as presented 
 
Option 2: Approve Ordinance 1051 with modifications 
 
Option 3: Take no action on Ordinance 1051 
 
          
MOTION(S) 
 
 
 



TITLE 12.  STREETS, SIDEWALKS, AND PUBLIC PLACES 
 

 
12.08 Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction 

 Revised October 2021 
1 of 2 

Deleted: June 2010

  
 CHAPTER 12.08 
 
 STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION 
 
SECTIONS 
 

12.08.310 Adopted, Conformance Required, Amendment 
12.08.320 RESERVED 
12.08.330 RESERVED 
12.08.340 RESERVED 
12.08.350 RESERVED 
12.08.360 RESERVED 
12.08.370 RESERVED 
12.08.380 RESERVED 
12.08.390 Violation: Penalty 

 
 
12.08.310  ADOPTED, CONFORMANCE REQUIRED, AMENDMENT 
 

1. The City has adopted a certain set of documents entitled “City of Stayton Public 
Works Design Standards and City of Stayton Construction Specifications as the 
public works design standards and construction specifications for public works 
improvements in the City. 

 
2. All public works design and construction, including workmanship and materials, 

shall be in accordance with the current edition of the City of Stayton Public 
Works Design Standards and Construction Specifications.  This section applies to 
all public improvements within the city limits of the City of Stayton, the Stayton 
Urban Growth Boundary or as otherwise required by law. 

 
3. The Public Works Director will periodically update the City of Stayton Public 

Works Design Standards and Construction Specifications to reflect changes in 
policy, procedure, new technology, design methods and construction methods. 

 
a. Requests for modifications may be initiated either by the City or by an 

interested party. 
 
b. Requests for modifications will be considered in accordance with the 

review procedures set forth in the City of Stayton Design Standards and 
Construction Specifications. 

 
c. The Public Works Director is hereby granted authority to approve or deny 

requests for modifications to the City of Stayton Design Standards and 
Construction Specifications. 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Hanging:  0.5"

Deleted: 

Deleted:  – 2010 Edition”

Deleted: 



TITLE 12.  STREETS, SIDEWALKS, AND PUBLIC PLACES 
 

 
12.08 Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction 

 Revised October 2021 
2 of 2 

Deleted: June 2010

 
d. Updates to the City of Stayton Public Works Design Standards and 

Construction Specifications will be posted on the City’s website.  Copies 
may be purchased from the City. 

 
e. The Public Works Director will provide the City Council with a report 

which lists the updates and modifications made to the City of Stayton 
Public Works Design Standards and Construction Specifications when 
changes are made. 

 
12.08.320 TO 12.08.380 RESERVED FOR EXPANSION 
 
12.08.390 VIOLATION: PENALTY 
 
  Violation of any regulation promulgated by authority of this chapter is punishable 
  by a fine not to exceed five hundred dollars ($500.00).  

Deleted:  semi-annual

Deleted: during the preceding six months

Deleted:  (Ord. 733, §1, October, 1994; Ord. 892, section 1, 
November 06, 2006; Ord. 925, June 07, 2010)¶

Deleted: 90

Deleted:  (Ord. 646, section 1 [part], 1988: prior code section 
4.995 [part], Ord. 925, June 07, 2010)¶



Ordinance No. 1051 
Amending the Stayton Municipal Code, Title 12, Chapter 12.08 
(City of Stayton Design Standards and Construction Specifications      Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 1051 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AND RESTATING THE STAYTON 
MUNICIPAL CODE, CHAPTER 12.08 (STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS 

FOR PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION) 

WHEREAS, Stayton Municipal Code (SMC) Title 12 provides for the adoption of public works 
design standards and construction specifications for streets, water, sanitary sewer, and storm 
drainage facilities owned and operated by the City of Stayton; 

WHEREAS, the City's standard specifications for public works design and construction were last 
updated in 2015; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s Public Works Director and City Engineer updated the City's design 
standards and construction specifications to reflect changes in policy, procedure, new technology, 
design methods and construction methods; and 

WHEREAS, the City's Public Works Department has completed a 12-month review of the public 
works design standards and construction specifications including a review of the design standards 
of other Oregon cities; and 

WHEREAS, the City staff has provided copies of the proposed City of Stayton Design Standards 
and Construction Specifications to the City Council for consideration; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Stayton ordains as follows: 

SECTION 1. Stayton Municipal Code, Chapter 12.08 of Title 12 is hereby repealed in its entirety 
whereupon the restated Chapter 12.08 of Title 12 SMC, as set forth in Exhibit A, attached to this 
ordinance and incorporated herein, is hereby adopted. 

SECTION 2. Upon adoption by the Stayton City Council and Mayor's signing, this Ordinance shall 
become effective 30 days after the date of signing. 

ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL this15th day of November 2021. 
CITY OF STAYTON 

Signed: ____________, 2021 BY: _______________________________ 
Henry A. Porter, Mayor 

Signed: ____________, 2021 ATTEST: _______________________________ 
             Alissa Angelo, City Manager- Pro-Tem



TITLE 12.  STREETS, SIDEWALKS, AND PUBLIC PLACES 

12.08 Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction
 Revised October 2021 

1 of 2 

CHAPTER 12.08 

STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION 

SECTIONS 

12.08.310 Adopted, Conformance Required, Amendment 
12.08.320 RESERVED 
12.08.330 RESERVED 
12.08.340 RESERVED 
12.08.350 RESERVED 
12.08.360 RESERVED 
12.08.370 RESERVED 
12.08.380 RESERVED 
12.08.390 Violation: Penalty 

12.08.310 ADOPTED, CONFORMANCE REQUIRED, AMENDMENT 

1. The City has adopted a certain set of documents entitled “City of Stayton Public
Works Design Standards and City of Stayton Construction Specifications” as the
public works design standards and construction specifications for public works
improvements in the City.

2. All public works design and construction, including workmanship and materials,
shall be in accordance with the current edition of the City of Stayton Public
Works Design Standards and Construction Specifications.  This section applies to
all public improvements within the city limits of the City of Stayton, the Stayton
Urban Growth Boundary or as otherwise required by law.

3. The Public Works Director will periodically update the City of Stayton Public
Works Design Standards and Construction Specifications to reflect changes in
policy, procedure, new technology, design methods and construction methods.

a. Requests for modifications may be initiated either by the City or by an
interested party.

b. Requests for modifications will be considered in accordance with the
review procedures set forth in the City of Stayton Design Standards and
Construction Specifications.

c. The Public Works Director is hereby granted authority to approve or deny
requests for modifications to the City of Stayton Design Standards and
Construction Specifications.

EXHIBIT A



TITLE 12.  STREETS, SIDEWALKS, AND PUBLIC PLACES 
 

 
12.08 Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction 

 Revised October 2021 
2 of 2 

 
d. Updates to the City of Stayton Public Works Design Standards and 

Construction Specifications will be posted on the City’s website.  Copies 
may be purchased from the City. 

 
e. The Public Works Director will provide the City Council with a report 

which lists the updates and modifications made to the City of Stayton 
Public Works Design Standards and Construction Specifications when 
changes are made.  

 
 

12.08.320 TO 12.08.380 RESERVED FOR EXPANSION 
 
12.08.390 VIOLATION: PENALTY 
 

Violation of any regulation promulgated by authority of this chapter is punishable by a 
fine not to exceed five hundred dollars ($500.00).   








































	11.04.21.  ORD.1051  Standard Specs SMC 12.08- Final.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO. 1051

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



